
           

FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA

Tuesday, December 11, 2018
8:30 AM

Executive Conference Room, Level Three
Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California

MEMBERS:
ALTERNATE:  

Council Member Cecilia Hupp and Council Member Marty Simonoff
Mayor Glenn Parker

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Finance Committee after distribution of the agenda packet are
available for public inspection in the third floor lobby of the Civic and Cultural Center at 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, CA during
normal business hours. Such documents may also be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post documents
before the meeting. 

             
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
 

1. Matters from the Audience
 
CONSENT
 

2.   Approval of Minutes of October 30, 2018 Meeting
 

Attachments
Minutes

 
3.   Professional Services Agreement with Juan M. Diaz (JMD) in the Amount

Not-To-Exceed $150,000 for Engineering Services Including Civil Engineering Design
and Plan Checking of Design Plans

 
Attachments
Proposal Letter
Agreement

 
DISCUSSION
 

4.   Consideration of Lease Agreement for Administrative Offices of Ambassador Church
at the Civic & Cultural Center

 

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, December 11, 2018



Attachments
Draft Lease

 
5. Schedule Next Meeting: January 8, 2019
 

cc: Mayor Pro Tem Christine Marick
Council Member Steven Vargas

Special Accommodations
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the City Clerk’s Office at (714) 990-7757. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable City staff to make
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. (28 CFR 35.102.35.104 ADA Title II)

NOTE: This agenda is subject to amendments up to 72 hours prior to the meeting date.

Finance Committee Agenda Tuesday, December 11, 2018



  2. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 12/11/2018

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes of October 30, 2018 Meeting

Attachments
Minutes 



 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Tuesday, October 30, 2018 
8:30 AM 

Executive Conference Room, Level Three 

Brea Civic & Cultural Center, 1 Civic Center Circle, Brea, California 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 
     

ATTENDEES: Council Member Cecilia Hupp, Council Member Marty Simonoff, Chris 
Emeterio, Tony Olmos, Cindy Russell, Michael Ho, Faith Madrazo, Mario Maldonado, Chris 
Nigg, Lee Squire, Alicia Brenner, Jenn Colacion, Warren Coleman and Raymond Contreras. 

 
 

1. Matters from the Audience – None. 

 
CONSENT 

 
2. Approval of Minutes of October 9, 2018 Meeting – Approved. 
 
3. Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with MTGL, Inc. for Additional 

Construction Materials and Soils Testing Services on Capital Improvement 
Projects – Recommended for City Council approval. 

 
4. Budget Adjustments to the City Operating and Capital Improvement Program 

Budgets for Fiscal Year 2018-19 – Recommended for City Council approval. 
 
5. Budget Adjustments to the Successor Agency to the Brea Redevelopment Agency 

Operating and Capital Improvement Program budget for Fiscal Year 2018-19 – 
Recommended for City Council approval. 

 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

6. Schedule Next Meeting: Tuesday, November 13, 2018 

 

Meeting adjourned: 8:34 am 

 
cc: Mayor Glenn Parker 
 Mayor Pro Tem Christine Marick 
 Council Member Steven Vargas 

 
 



  3. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bill Gallardo 

DATE: 12/11/2018

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Juan M. Diaz (JMD) in the Amount
Not-To-Exceed $150,000 for Engineering Services Including Civil Engineering
Design and Plan Checking of Design Plans

RECOMMENDATION
Approve agreement with JMD in the amount not-to-exceed $150,000 for three (3)
years plus two (2) one-year extensions; and

1.

Authorize City Manager to approve extensions2.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
The City of Brea has an ambitious seven year Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  The
projects in the CIP include rehabilitation of arterial highways, residential streets and alley
ways, replacement of undersized and deteriorated sewer and water lines, installation of traffic
signals and other traffic safety enhancements, and rehabilitation of City-owned facilities.  In
order to complete the construction of these projects, there are a number of professional
services needed to support City staff and to provide the technical expertise.  These
professional services include civil engineering design and plan checking of design plans.
 
In addition to the CIP, there is also a need to provide support to City staff in the plan
checking of infill project development and redevelopment.  There are many private
development projects on the horizon and the Engineering staff needs additional resources to
supplement its current staffing.

Staff solicited the services of Juan M. Diaz, Incorporated (“JMD”), an engineering consulting
firm to provide staff augmentation, specialized engineering plan checking and design
services.  JMD offers a wide range of services covering planning, engineering and
management for public agencies.  These services cover all phases of project development
from conceptual design through construction.  Such depth of services is one of JMD’s unique
and distinguishing characteristics.  JMD has highly qualified staff that has worked with many
public agencies.

JMD has previously done work for the City of Brea.  JMD recently assisted the City on The
Tracks at Brea Western Extension.  JMD was instrumental in working closely with the rail
companies to support staff in the right of way acquisition, environmental documentation and
analysis.  Staff has been working with JMD for over a year and has been very satisfied.  Staff
intends to use JMD for staff augmentation and engineering consulting services.  Duties may
include design and plan checking CIP’s, plan checking development related plans and
issuance of public works permits.  JMD’s proposal for hourly rates for the highly qualified



issuance of public works permits.  JMD’s proposal for hourly rates for the highly qualified
staff are within industry standards and meet the City’s needs.  The proposed PSA is for a
period of three (3) years with the option to extend for an additional two (2) one-year
extensions.  The total fee per consultant for all assignments to be authorized during a single
year would be limited to a not-to-exceed fee of $150,000.  

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Since the consultant fees are paid from corresponding CIP project accounts and/or Cost
Center accounts, an appropriation of funds for these consultant contracts is not required. 
There will be no General Fund impact. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by:  Michael Ho, P.E., Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer
Concurrence:  Tony Olmos, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
Proposal Letter 
Agreement 



 

18645 East Gale Avenue, Suite 212, City of Industry, CA  91748 
(626) 820-1137 Tel ● (626) 820-1136 Fax 

A Certified CBE/DBE/MBE/SBE Firm             www.jmdiaz.com 

 
November 19, 2018 
 
Mr. Michael Ho 
Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
City of Brea 
1 Civic Center Circle 
Brea, CA  92821 2018.1112.0070.00 
 
Subject: Proposal to Provide On-Call Services for the City’s Capital Improvements and Development 

Projects 
 
Dear Mr. Ho: 

JMDiaz, Inc. (JMD), a local full-service engineering firm, is pleased to submit this proposal to provide professional on-
call services to the City of Brea (City). Our proposal has been prepared in accordance with our meeting on Thursday, 
November 15, 2018. In addition, our attached SOQ outlines our qualifications. 

Our Project Manager 

JMD’s objective is to assist the City in achieving its goals in a timely and responsive manner. We have therefore 
assigned one of our best and experienced engineering professionals, Deepak Solanki, with over 28 years of municipal 
engineering and Brea experience. He has overseen analysis, design and construction of capital improvement projects 
for numerous agencies throughout Southern California. He has extensive experience in the design of diverse civil 
engineering projects such as parks, street, sewer, water, grading, storm drain systems, backbone utility layout and 
utility relocation. Mr. Solanki has successfully prepared design plans for various park improvements, street 
improvements, single family residential subdivisions, commercial, industrial and educational facilities, an Air 
Force/Naval Base facilities. A former Manhattan Beach City Engineer and current Brea consultant, Deepak 
understands City objectives and has been responsible for design and construction of street, utility (water, storm drain 
and sewer), bikeway, parks and development projects, often performing construction management and construction 
inspection by himself.  

For this assignment, we can provide Mr. Solanki at $110 per hour for services provided. Mr. Solanki’s resume is 
enclosed. 

Our Services 

JMD offers a variety of municipal services covering transportation and 
land development projects for local agencies. JMD has or is serving as 
City Engineer or City Traffic Engineer for the following clients: 

 City of Covina (City Engineer) 

 City of Chino (On Call Civil Engineer)  

 City of Industry (City Engineering/City Traffic Engineer) 

 City of Pico Rivera (On Call Traffic Engineer) 

 City of San Gabriel (City Traffic Engineer) 

 City of South Gate (City Traffic Engineer) 





City of Brea 
Staff Augmentation Services for the City’s Capital Improvements and Development Projects 

D. Solanki, p. 1 
 

Deepak Solanki 
Project Director 

 

Qualifications 
Deepak has over 28 years of experience assisting local agency Land 
Development Divisions with plan reviews for new developments and has 
managed numerous Capital Improvement Projects for public works 
departments. He has extensive experience in the design and plan review of 
diverse civil engineering projects, such as parks, street, sewer, grading, flood 
control projects, backbone utility layout and utility relocation. As Project 
Engineer and Project Manager, he has prepared design plans for single family 
residential subdivisions, commercial, industrial, educational facilities and Air 
Force/Naval Base facilities including underground utilities. He is familiar with 
right of way acquisition research, temporary construction easement documents, 
legal descriptions/plats, surveying, cost estimates and quantity take-offs. 

He has extensive computer and design skills; able and proficient in Microsoft 
Word, Excel, Microsoft Projects, AutoCAD 2018, 3D Civil and Land 
Development Design Desktop, GIS Software - Arc View by ESRI, Haestad 
Methods for Hydraulic Calculations, and Felix software for the design of fire 
lines to develop project files and designs. 

Relevant Experience 
City Engineering Services – Brea 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking grading and drainage 
improvement plans for subdivision and food distribution facilities.  Assisted in 
generating Conditions of Approvals for different commercial, industrial, and 
Subdivision Projects. Provided review comments for Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP), and reviewed plans that involved improvements within the public 
right-of-way.  The projects included street overlay, widening projects, and 
Lambert/I-57 Freeway Interchange improvements. The responsibilities also 
entailed reviewing traffic control plans for projects initiated by Time Warner 
Cable, Southern California Edison, AT&T, and Southern California Gas 
Company.  

The Tracks at Brea/UPRR (“OC Loop”) Bike Trail – City of Brea 
Serving as Project Engineer responsible for the analysis and design of the 
drainage element of the Brea/Union Pacific Rail Line Bikeway Project from the 
west City limit to the Brea Wash. The Brea bikeway will eventually connect to 
future bikeways to the west in the City of La Habra as part of OCTA's Regional 
Commuter Bikeway Priorities and Orange County Loop Project. The project 
tasks include hydrology analysis, preliminary and final engineering phases 
including conceptual design, preparation of environmental documents, 
schematic design, right-of-way engineering maps and necessary legal 
descriptions. The project includes paved bikeway, landscaping, hardscaping, 
drainage, traffic signals and one bridge.  

La Habra/UPRR (“OC Loop”) Bike Trail – La Habra 
Serving as Project Engineer responsible for providing professional engineering 
services for the design of the La Habra Union Pacific Rail Line Bikeway Project, 
from the west City limit to the east City limit. The La Habra bikeway will 

  
 

Title 
 

Senior Project Manager 
 

Years of Experience 
 

28 
 

Education 
 

M.S. University, Faculty of 
Technology and Engineering, B.S. 
Civil Engineering, 1982 
 

Affiliations 
 

 American Society of Civil 
Engineers 

 American Railway Engineering 
and Maintenance of Way 
Association 



City of Brea 
Staff Augmentation Services for the City’s Capital Improvements and Development Projects 

D. Solanki, p. 2 
 

eventually connect to future bikeways to the west in the City of Whittier (Greenway Trail) and to the east to the City of 
Brea's bikeway as part of OCTA's Regional Commuter Bikeway Priorities and Orange County Loop Project. Project 
tasks include preliminary and final engineering phases including conceptual design, preparation of environmental 
documents, schematic design, right-of-way engineering maps and necessary legal descriptions, as well as preparation 
of final construction plans, specifications and cost estimates. The project includes bikeway alignment, drainage, traffic 
signal, and structural plans for the project.  

City Engineering Services – City of Industry 
Serving as Project Engineer responsible for performing engineering plan review and plan checks for all the 
improvements within public right of way.  Also responsible for reviewing and approving design changes during 
construction phase for Puente Grade Separation, Fullerton Grade Separation Projects; reviewing improvement plans 
for encroachment permits; assisting the Planning Department; and providing engineering condition of approval for 
development projects. Responsibilities also included reviewing Sewer Capacity Study Reports; Industrial Waste 
Discharge application (coordination with L.A. County Sanitation District); Domestic Waste Discharge; managing the 
design and coordination with different stake holders; approval of CIP Projects; and provided front counter support at 
the City Hall. Acted as the City’s representative and played an important role as a Construction Administrator for 
projects under construction, three of those projects being grade separation projects at Puente Avenue, Fullerton Road 
and Fairway Drive which exceeded $80M.  He assisted design firms with their technical inquiries and provide guidance 
to expedite preparation of design plans.   

City Engineering Services – JMH Weiss, Inc. San Jose  
Served as Project Engineer responsible for the marketing, proposals, field research, coordinating scope an survey 
limits, project meetings, utility coordination and design, preparing improvements plans, overseeing the design and 
drafting team, preparing technical specifications, providing construction support, preparing as-built plans, designing 
and managing the following institutional and commercial civil engineering projects: 

 New Jail Project for the City and County of San Francisco located in San Bruno and San Francisco Juvenile Hall 
Complex (Laguna Honda) 

 Torreno de Flores Housing Complex in Los Gatos 
 Lexus of Coliseum Dealership in Oakland 
 “W” Hotel in Palo Alto 
 Cushing Bridge Road design/alignment for Catellus Development Corporation in Fremont 
 Industrial Complex in Livermore 
 Bio-Medical Laboratory in Hayward 
 LEED Certified Green House with parking lot design for The William & Flora Hewlett Foundation in Menlo Park 
 Catellus Development Corporation – Mission Bay, San Francisco.  Dealt with utility location, utility coordination 

and design 
 
On-Site Grading/Drainage Plan and Street light improvements on Hill Street – Cathedral of Our Lady of the 
Angels, City of Los Angeles 
Served as Project Engineer, part of the design team, responsible for preparing plans for on-site grading and drainage 
plans.  The project had complex interface with other design team such as Architect, Landscape Architect, Structural 
Engineer, Geotechnical Engineer, and MEP Engineer. Also responsible for the final design of the street lighting on Hill 
Street.  

City Engineering Services – Villa Park 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking rough, precise grading, underground utilities, and erosion 
control plans for various small residential subdivision and home remodel projects. 

City Engineering Services – Laguna Woods 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking traffic control plans, street widening, grading, and drainage 
plans for various commercial and residential projects. 



City of Brea 
Staff Augmentation Services for the City’s Capital Improvements and Development Projects 

D. Solanki, p. 3 
 

City Engineering Services – Manhattan Beach 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking grading, drainage, sewer, and water plans for single family 
custom homes. Reviewed sewer, storm drain, and water relocation plans for Macy’s as well as grading and drainage 
plans for Gelson’s Market, Toyota of Manhattan Beach, and the Medical Plaza. 

City Engineering Services – South Gate 
Served as Plan Reviewer/Project Manager responsible for reviewing comments for Capital Improvement Projects 
(CIP). The projects included street widening, parks, sewer master plan, ADA improvements, and Firestone Bridge 
widening Project over the Los Angeles River. Assisted in generating Conditions of Approvals for different commercial 
and industrial projects. The responsibilities also entailed managing Capital Improvement Projects, such as ADA 
Transition Plan, Citywide ADA ramps improvements, and Traffic Signal ADA improvements on Tweedy Boulevard at 
State Street and California Avenue. 

City Engineering Services – Baldwin Park 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking final maps (Parcel and Tract Maps). The plan reviewing 
responsibilities involved reviewing title reports, deeds, easements, centerline ties, lot line adjustments, Tentative Parcel 
Maps, Condition of Approvals, and boundary closure calculations. 

City Engineering Services – Mesa Water District and City of Costa Mesa 
Served as Plan Reviewer responsible for plan checking water plans for both domestic and fire. Performed meter 
upgrade calculations (based upon fixture counts and fire department requirements); and updated specifications, 
created guidelines, and recommended changes to the standard plans and fee study. Provided review comments for 
different development projects in the City of Costa Mesa at Development Review Committee meetings. Also, 
coordinated, approved, and plan checked all water improvement plans for both new and relocation projects for John 
Wayne Airport. 

City Engineering Services – Moreno Valley 
Served as Project Engineer responsible for performing engineering plan review and plan checks for the Land 
Development and Capital Projects Divisions.  Reviewed and analyzed a variety of engineering reports and technical 
documentation, including water quality management plans; land title surveys; conceptual designs; and hydrology, 
hydraulics, geotechnical and soils reports.  Generated condition of approvals, entitlements and plan checked civil plans 
for warehouses, commercial and industrial facilities. Plans reviewed were rough and precise grading, final maps, 
drainage, street and underground utilities. Also provided on-site inspector responsibilities for Public Work projects and 
prepared street overlay plans and specifications as well as prepared and updated Public Works City Standard Plans. 

City Engineering Services – Moreno Valley 
Served as Project Engineer who was responsible for managing the construction of road widening, sidewalks, street 
medians and improvement of private streets; the technical specification for public/private street improvements and 
Class II/Class III bikeway plans for Capital Improvement projects, preparing estimate for construction projects, working 
as an on-site inspector for Public Works Project’s and preparing street overlay plans and specifications; developing 
ranking criteria to rank and prioritize improvements for private streets and infill sections of public streets, ranking order 
included design, construction and right-of-way acquisition costs.  Responsibilities also included preparing and 
submitting Federal and State grant applications, such as TUMF, STP, BTA, SB821, TEA and SR2S; performing 
engineering plan review and plan checks for Land Development Division and Capital Projects Division; reviewing and 
analyzing a variety of engineering reports and technical documentation, including water quality management plans, 
land title surveys, conceptual designs and hydrology, hydraulics, geotechnical and soils reports; preparing and updating 
Public Works City Standard Plans; performing construction site field inspections, monitoring project progress, resolve 
field issues and ensuring compliance with approved plans, specifications and standards; preparing cost estimates for 
backbone infrastructures, costs were incorporated into City’s Development Impact Fee Study; assisted in preparing 
Capital Improvement Plan budget; preparing the  Arterial Street Choke Points Program which assisted in identifying 
streets with traffic flow issues; and assisted City right of way agent with boundary research and determine property 
rights.  Prepare land acquisition legal descriptions and plats for various Capital Improvement Projects. 



































  4. 
City of Brea

FINANCE COMMITTEE COMMUNICATION

TO: Finance Committee Members

FROM: David Crabtree 

DATE: 12/11/2018

SUBJECT: Consideration of Lease Agreement for Administrative Offices of Ambassador
Church at the Civic & Cultural Center

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the Five-Year Lease Agreement between the City of Brea and Ambassador Church.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION
Ambassador Church has operated its administrative offices within 1,550 square feet of space
on the Plaza Level of the Brea Civic & Cultural Center since February 1, 2014. The current
Lease, which expires January 31, 2019, provides for a three-year term with a two-year
extension and includes annual rent adjustments which Ambassador Church has
implemented. They are currently paying $1.70 per square foot totaling $2,631.03 in monthly
rent (Note - Exact calculations were used to determine monthly and annual rent. Figures
provided in price per square foot show rounding for purpose of display). 

The rent for the space over the past five years has been as follows: 

Year Price per
square foot

Price per
square foot per

year
Monthly Rent Annual Rent

1 $1.40 $16.80 $2,170.00 $26,040.00
2 $1.50 $18.00 $2,325.00 $27,900.00
3 $1.60 $19.20 $2,480.00 $29,760.00
4 $1.65 $19.78 $2,554.40 $30,652.80
5 $1.70 $20.37 $2,631.03 $31,572.38

Over the years, Ambassador Church has been an excellent tenant and has always paid their
rent on time. They are respectful of the City’s facilities, and work well with City staff.
Ambassador also continues to use the Curtis Theater for their worship services under a
separate use agreement with the City, which has been active since 2008. Their primary use
for the subject lease space is for the Church's administrative office functions with minor
incidental use of two rooms for classroom space on the weekend.

With the current lease agreement coming to an end on January 31, 2019, Ambassador
Church and staff are proposing a renewal of the lease for a five-year term commencing on
February 1, 2019, at $1.76 per square foot for a monthly rent amount of $2,733.64. The
starting rent for the new lease represents an increase in CPI of 3.9% over the current rent of
$2,631.03. Staff compared this rate to approximately 20 commercial leases in Brea and



$2,631.03. Staff compared this rate to approximately 20 commercial leases in Brea and
narrowed the focus to properties positioned as gross modified leases, or leases where the
landlord generally pays for certain operating costs. For example, the City of Brea will pay for
the maintenance and upkeep of the shared parking, restrooms, elevators, landscaping, and
other common amenities while Ambassador will pay for and maintain the upkeep for the
interior of their leased space. Based on the research, the proposed monthly rent is within the
market range, at the lower end of the surveyed properties and commensurate with the
constraints and unique characteristics of the facility and this tenant space. 

Market Comparison: 
Location  Price per square foot  Price per square foot per year 

770 S. Brea Blvd. $1.74 $20.88
265 S. Randolph Ave. $1.90 $22.80
3000 E. Birch St. $1.90 $22.80
3700 Saturn St. $2.05 $24.60
3030 Saturn St. $2.05 $24.60

Average $1.93 $23.14

The rent for the space will be as follows: 

Year Price per
square foot

Price per
square foot per

year
Monthly Rent Annual Rent

6 $1.76 $21.16 $2,733.64 $32,803.71
7-10* TBD TBD TBD TBD

*Rent increased annually by CPI, floored at 2% and capped at 4% 

The proposed five-year term does not include extensions. Any renewals will be brought back
for City Council consideration. Annual increases based on CPI will be floored at 2% and
capped at 4%. Provisions added to the new lease include a two-month security deposit,
access for regular inspections, and a “120 day notice or 120 day rent” early termination
provision.

SUMMARY/FISCAL IMPACT
Ambassador Church has been leasing office space on the Plaza Level of the Brea Civic &
Cultural Center since February 1, 2014.  Ambassador Church is interested in renewing their
lease for a term of five years at a monthly rent of $2,733.71.  This will provide an annual
revenue of $32,803.71 to the City of Brea, and the rental amount will increase on an annual
basis.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED
William Gallardo, City Manager
Prepared by: Linda Tang, Management Analyst I
Concurrence: David Crabtree, Community Development Director

Attachments
Draft Lease 




















































	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes of October 30, 2018 Meeting
	Att1_Minutes
	Professional Services Agreement with Juan M. Diaz (JMD)
	Att1_Proposal Letter
	1
	p070-JMD
	p070-JMD p1
	SKM_C36818111917520
	Resume-Deepak


	Att2_Agreement
	Consideration of Lease for Ambassador Church Administrative Offices at the Brea Civic & Cultural Center
	Att1_Draft Lease

